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● (1530)

[English]
The Clerk of the Committee (Ms. Aimée Belmore): Hon‐

ourable members of the committee, I see a quorum.

I must inform members of the committee that the clerk of the
committee can only receive motions for the election of the chair.
The clerk cannot receive other types of motions, cannot entertain
points of order, nor participate in debate.

We will now proceed to the election of the chair.

Pursuant to Standing Order 106(2), the chair must be a member
of the government party.

I am ready to receive motions for the chair.
Mr. Francis Drouin (Glengarry—Prescott—Russell, Lib.):

Madam Clerk, reluctantly, I nominate Pat Finnigan, and I say “re‐
luctantly”, reluctantly.

The Clerk: It has been moved by Mr. Drouin that Mr. Finnigan
be elected as chair of the committee.

Are there any further motions?

Pursuant to the House order of Wednesday, September 23, I will
now proceed to a recorded division unless there is agreement.

Do I see agreement?

I declare the motion carried, and Mr. Pat Finnigan duly elected
chair of the committee.

I invite Mr. Finnigan to take the chair.
The Chair (Mr. Pat Finnigan (Miramichi—Grand Lake,

Lib.)): Thank you, Madam Clerk, and thank you for the confidence
of the committee.

Francis, you do have a way with words, and I appreciate it.

Madam Clerk, please proceed with the election of the vice-
chairs.

The Clerk: Pursuant to Standing Order 106(2), the first vice-
chair must be a member of the official opposition.

I am prepared to receive motions for the first vice-chair.
Mrs. Lyne Bessette (Brome—Missisquoi, Lib.): I'd like to pro‐

pose Mr. Perron.
The Clerk: I apologize, Ms. Bessette, but it's for the first vice-

chair, which must be a member of the official opposition.

Mr. Steinley.
Mr. Warren Steinley (Regina—Lewvan, CPC): I would pro‐

pose Ms. Lianne Rood.
The Clerk: Are there any further motions for the first vice-

chair?

It has been moved by Mr. Steinley that Ms. Rood be elected as
the first vice-chair of the committee.

Pursuant to the House order of Wednesday, September 23,
2020—
[Translation]

Mr. Yves Perron (Berthier—Maskinongé, BQ): Pardon me,
Madam Clerk. I have a question about how we operate.

I thought that someone was going to nominate me to be second
vice-chair.
[English]

The Clerk: Currently, we're doing the first vice-chair. The sec‐
ond vice-chair will be in a moment.
[Translation]

Mr. Yves Perron: Okay.

I am sorry. I thought that you had moved on.
The Clerk: Okay.

So we can proceed.
[English]

For the position of first vice-chair, are there any further motions?

Is there agreement?

Seeing agreement, I declare the motion carried, and Ms. Rood is
duly elected first vice-chair of the committee.

Moving on to the position of the second vice-chair, pursuant to
Standing Order 106(2), the second vice-chair must be a member of
an opposition party other than the official opposition.

I'm now prepared to receive motions for the second vice-chair.
● (1535)

Mrs. Lyne Bessette: I'd like to propose Mr. Perron.
The Clerk: Are there any further motions for the position of sec‐

ond vice-chair?
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It has been moved by Ms. Bessette that Mr. Perron be elected as
second vice-chair of the committee.

Is there agreement?

Seeing agreement, I declare the motion carried, and Mr. Perron
duly elected second vice-chair of the committee.
[Translation]

Mr. Richard Lehoux (Beauce, CPC): Admit it, you were
scared, Mr. Perron.

Mr. Yves Perron: I was terrified, my friend.
[English]

The Chair: Thank you, Madam Clerk.

I would first like to congratulate the vice-chair, Ms. Rood and the
second vice-chair, Mr. Perron.

Now we can go to the routine motions.

Mr. Blois, go ahead.
Mr. Kody Blois (Kings—Hants, Lib.): I'd like to move routine

motions, which I will read for you.
Analyst services
That the Committee retain, as needed and at the discretion of the Chair, the ser‐
vices of one or more analysts from the Library of Parliament to assist it in its
work.
Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure
That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be established and be com‐
posed of five (5) members; the Chair, one member from each party; and that the
subcommittee work in the spirit of collaboration.
Meeting without a quorum
That the Chair be authorized to hold meetings to receive and publish evidence
when a quorum is not present, provided that at least four members are present,
including two members of the opposition and two members of the government;
and that in the case of previously scheduled meetings taking place outside of the
Parliamentary Precinct, the Committee members in attendance be required to
wait for 15 minutes following the designated start of the meeting before they
may proceed to hear witnesses and receive evidence, regardless of whether op‐
position or government members are present.
Time for opening remarks and questioning of witnesses
That witnesses be given ten (10) minutes for their opening statement; that, at the
discretion of the Chair, during the questioning of witnesses, there be allocated
six (6) minutes for the first questioner of each party in the following order: Con‐
servative Party as follows: Conservative Party, Liberal Party, Bloc Québécois,
New Democratic Party.
For the second and subsequent rounds, the order and time for questioning be as
follows: Conservative Party, five minutes (5), Liberal Party, five minutes (5),
Conservative Party, five minutes (5), Liberal Party, five minutes (5), Bloc
Québécois, two and a half minutes (2.5), New Democratic Party, two and a half
minutes (2.5).
Document distribution
That only the clerk of the Committee be authorized to distribute documents to
members of the Committee, and only when the documents are available in both
official languages and that witnesses be advised accordingly.
Working meals
That the clerk of the Committee be authorized to make the necessary arrange‐
ments to provide working meals for the Committee and its subcommittees.
Travel, accommodation and living expenses of witnesses
That, if requested, reasonable travel, accommodation and living expenses be re‐
imbursed to witnesses not exceeding two (2) representatives per organization;
provided that, in exceptional circumstances, payment for more representatives
be made at the discretion of the Chair.

Access to in camera meetings

That, unless otherwise ordered, each Committee member be allowed to have one
staff member at an in camera meeting and that one additional person from each
House officer’s office be allowed to be present.

Transcripts of in camera meetings

That one copy of the transcript of each in camera meeting be kept in the Com‐
mittee clerk’s office for consultation by members of the Committee or by their
staff.

Notice of motion

That a 48 hours notice, interpreted as two nights, shall be required for any sub‐
stantive motion to be considered by the Committee, unless the substantive mo‐
tion relates directly to business then under consideration, provided that (1) the
notice be filed with the clerk of the Committee no later than 4:00 p.m. from
Monday to Friday; that (2) the motion be distributed to members in both official
languages by the clerk on the same day the said notice was transmitted if it was
received no later than the deadline hour; and that (3) notices received after the
deadline hour or on non-business days be deemed to have been received during
the next business day; and that when the committee is travelling on official busi‐
ness, no substantive motions may be moved.

Orders of reference from the House respecting bills

That, in relation to Orders of Reference from the House respecting Bills, a) the
clerk of the Committee shall, upon the committee receiving such an Order of
Reference, write to each member who is not a member of a caucus represented
on the Committee to invite those members to file with the clerk of the Commit‐
tee, in both official languages, any amendments to the Bill, which is the subject
of the said Order, which they would suggest that the Committee consider; b)
suggested amendments filed, pursuant to paragraph a), at least 48 hours prior to
the start of clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill to which the amendments
relate shall be deemed to be proposed during the said consideration, provided
that the Committee may, by motion, vary this deadline in respect of a given Bill;
and c) during the clause-by-clause consideration of a Bill, the Chair shall allow a
member who filed suggested amendments, pursuant to paragraph a), an opportu‐
nity to make brief representations in support of them.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
● (1540)

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Blois.

Go ahead, Mr. MacGregor.
Mr. Alistair MacGregor (Cowichan—Malahat—Langford,

NDP): Thank you very much, Chair. Off the bat, it's great to see ev‐
eryone. Welcome to the new members of our committee.

I know there were some discussions among the parties at proce‐
dure and House affairs. I think 99% of what was read in is good to
go. Some slight amendments were made. Kody has read out all of
them so I'll start from the beginning.

If we go to the section that's dealing with the subcommittee on
agenda and procedure, my first amendment would be that instead of
it saying “each party” it would be “each recognized party”.

The substantive amendment I have to make would be going to
the section dealing with the time for opening remarks and question‐
ing for witnesses. Before I move my amendment, let me explain the
rationale.

As we know in this committee, we've often lost a lot of time to
opening statements. We haven't got around to as many questions as
we would have liked. I think we've lost some witness testimony as
a result. Following the example that was made at procedure and
House affairs committee, I suggest the following amendments to
the routine motion that was just proposed.
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That first sentence would read, “That witnesses be given five
minutes for their opening statements; that whenever possible wit‐
nesses provide the committee with their opening statements 72
hours in advance.”

The other amendment I would like to make is in the section deal‐
ing with second and subsequent rounds. Here, I'd like the order to
be changed so it goes Conservative Party, five minutes; Liberal Par‐
ty, five minutes; Bloc Québécois, two and half minutes; New
Democratic Party, two and half minutes; Conservative Party, five
minutes; Liberal Party, five minutes.

That concludes the amendments I want to make. Again, if you're
looking for precedents, this was established at procedure and House
affairs.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. MacGregor.

Go ahead, Mr. Drouin. Is this related to the amendments?
Mr. Francis Drouin: No, Mr. Chair, I want to speak to the rou‐

tine motion. I thought this was a done deal. I don't think we have an
issue with Mr. MacGregor. I'm not speaking to the motion.

Merci.
● (1545)

The Chair: We'll hold your place there.

Mr. Perron.
[Translation]

Mr. Yves Perron: I want to talk about the housekeeping motions
as well. I believe I will support Mr. MacGregor's amendment, if I
am right in understanding that, in the second round, the Conserva‐
tive Party would have five minutes, the Liberal Party would also
have five minutes, the Bloc Québécois would have two and a half
minutes, the New Democratic Party would also have two and a half
minutes, the Conservative Party would have five minutes and the
Liberal Party would have five minutes.

Did I hear what you read earlier correctly, Mr. MacGregor? I
might have suggested that we ensure that every party can partici‐
pate in every round, but it is six of one, half dozen of the other. So I
am going to approve this proposal.
[English]

Ms. Lianne Rood (Lambton—Kent—Middlesex, CPC): I'm
okay with the 10-minute rounds. I think my colleague was referring
to the COVI committee when we had a ton of witnesses we had to
get through in a very short time. They were stacked. We did not
have sufficient time to hear from them. I think that, with the studies
going forward, 10 minutes is a good amount of time. We have a lot
of information to get through in this committee from our stakehold‐
ers. I don't believe that five minutes is enough time.

I would like to stay with that 10 minutes.
The Chair: We have a motion and an amendment on the table. If

there are no more interventions, we will vote on the amendment.

Mr. MacGregor.
Mr. Alistair MacGregor: I appreciate Ms. Rood's comments

about the five minutes. I'm willing to meet her in the middle. We

could go to seven and a half. I'm really interested in making sure as
many MPs as possible get to that second round.

Ms. Lianne Rood: Yes, I'm fine with that, Alistair. That's a good
compromise.

The Chair: Any other comments on the amendment?

If not, we shall vote on the amendment.

Ms. Lianne Rood: Mr. Chair, could you clarify the speaking or‐
der that was suggested?

The Chair: Mr. MacGregor, would you like to clarify exactly
what you're proposing?

Mr. Alistair MacGregor: Yes, and this is also for the clerk's
benefit as well. In the first sentence, it would read, “That witnesses
be given seven and a half minutes for their opening statements and
that whenever possible, witnesses provide the committee with their
opening statements 72 hours in advance.” That concludes the sub‐
stantive amendment.

Going down to the section dealing with the second and subse‐
quent rounds, the new order, as proposed by myself, would now
read, “Conservative Party, five minutes; Liberal Party, five minutes;
Bloc Québécois, two and a half minutes; New Democratic Party,
two and a half minutes; Conservative Party, five minutes; Liberal
Party, five minutes.”

The Chair: You've all heard the amendment. We're going to
have to have two votes, one by one.

The first amendment was to add the word “recognized”, so that it
reads “recognized party”.

Madam Clerk, do we need to vote on each individually, or can
we get a consensus?

The Clerk: If the desire is to pass all of the amendments, then
you could pass them all in one shot. Otherwise, each amendment
would need to be made separately, and voted on separately.

I'll leave it to your discretion.

The Chair: Are we all in favour to pass everything in one vote,
the total amendments that were proposed?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chair: Good. Those in favour of the amendments, raise
your hand.

(Amendments agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

● (1550)

[Translation]

Mr. Yves Perron: Mr. Chair, could you clarify something?

You say “raise your hand”, but is that on the screen?

The Chair: Yes, it is on the screen.

Mr. Yves Perron: Very good.



4 AGRI-01 October 8, 2020

[English]
The Chair: Right. We've got to vote on the motion now.
The Clerk: Mr. Chair, the amendment is adopted. If it is the de‐

sire to pass all the routine motions as one, indeed the motion as
amended.

The Chair: We now need to vote on the motion as amended.

(Motion as amended agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: Before I move to Mr. Drouin, I want to welcome the
whole committee. I'm really looking forward to helping our ag sec‐
tor, and good co-operation from all. Welcome to the new members.
I'm really excited to move on to some of the things we want to do
in agriculture.

Mr. Drouin.
Mr. Francis Drouin: Mr. Chair, first, I want to congratulate Ms.

Rood as vice-chair. I know she's not new to this committee, so it's
great to have her here as well.

[Translation]

I would like to take this opportunity to congratulate Mr. Perron
as well.

[English]

I'm trying to seek the committee's willingness. When we last
ended the committee, we were speaking about BRMs. Through
luck, I would say, Saskatchewan is now in an election and this actu‐
ally gives us an opportunity to establish and finish the business risk
management report.

I'm trying to get a sense of whether the committee would be will‐
ing to get the draft report back to committee, so we can finish as
soon as possible.

I'm not moving anything now. I'm just trying to see whether the
committee would be in agreement to do that over the next few
weeks while we are back. Perhaps, at a later date, and depending on
what we decide after that, we could discuss other matters and per‐
haps even the subcommittee could decide on what it wants to do
later on.

The Chair: Thank you.

[Translation]

You have the floor, Mr. Perron.
Mr. Yves Perron: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Actually, that is sort of tied into my question. I was wondering if
we could introduce motions today. I believe the clerk said earlier
that we could not. Of course, I would agree with Mr. Drouin.

If we can introduce motions, I have some too.
The Chair: Mr. Perron, I believe that it was not possible to do so

until the chair and vice-chairs were elected.

Now we can receive motions.

Madam Clerk, is that right?

[English]
The Clerk: Yes, sir, that is correct.

[Translation]
The Chair: Okay.
Mr. Yves Perron: First, I support Mr. Drouin's idea. It is one of

the motions I wanted to put forward. The clerk has the three mo‐
tions that I wanted to propose to the committee.

May I read them now?
The Chair: It is up to you, Mr. Perron. We can also pick up the

discussion about continuing the study on business risk management
programs. It is up to you.

Mr. Yves Perron: I do not want to lose my turn. So I will present
the other two motions.

The Chair: You have the floor.
Mr. Yves Perron: Okay.

Here is the first motion:
That, pursuant to Standing Order 108(2), the Committee undertake a study on
the issues faced by and impacts on the affected sectors (supply managed com‐
modities under the last three free trade agreements, the Comprehensive Econom‐
ic and Trade Agreement (CETA) between Canada and the European Union, the
Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership
(CPTPP) and the Canada–United States–Mexico Agreement (CUSMA)); and
that it focus on those to which the government has not paid all due compensa‐
tion.

The second motion is as follows:
That, pursuant to Standing Order 108(2), the Committee undertake a study with
witnesses on the measures the Government of Canada could implement to recog‐
nize and fund agricultural practices that are beneficial in terms of the environ‐
ment, land use, local economies and regional development, among others; and
that the Committee report its recommendations to the House.

I believe that the second motion, in particular, may address the
concerns of several members from a number of the various parties
present.

The third motion simply asks that we do what we intended to do
before prorogation.

Thank you.
● (1555)

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Perron.

Mr. MacGregor has the floor.

[English]
The Clerk: Can I just clarify something?

Are you moving the other motion for the BRM?

[Translation]
Mr. Yves Perron: I understood that Mr. Drouin had recommend‐

ed that we take up the report again and continue the study. That is
essentially what my motion says.

I can read it again. Here it is:
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That, pursuant to Standing Order 108(2), the Committee undertake a study on
the business risk management programs; that the evidence and documentation
the Committee received for the study during the 1st Session of the 43rd Parlia‐
ment be considered by the Committee during the current session; and that it fi‐
nalize the nearly completed report.

The Chair: So we have a motion on the floor.
[English]

Mr. MacGregor, please go ahead.
Mr. Alistair MacGregor: Yes. That's what I was wondering

about. The procedural part of me is now happy because I believe
we finally have a motion before us about formally continuing the
BRM study. I think it includes all the language we need to include
and all the witness testimony we've heard.

The majority of us have that draft report, so if this motion is au‐
thorizing us to pick up where we left off, I'm good with it.

Ms. Lianne Rood: I think we would be in agreement as well to
pick up where we left off on the BRM study, provided that the lan‐
guage has all of the necessities in it to be able to take into account
all of the previous testimony and the draft report that's already writ‐
ten.

The Chair: I see other hands up. We do have a motion on the
floor. Put your hand up if it's to discuss this motion, and then we
can vote.

Mr. Blois, do you want to comment on this motion?
Mr. Kody Blois: I'm just seeking a little bit of clarity. What I un‐

derstand is that we have a motion right now to basically bring back
the BRM study from where we were in the last session. Is that cor‐
rect? Am I fair in saying that's what Mr. Perron just brought for‐
ward?

The Chair: That's correct, yes.
Mr. Kody Blois: Okay.

Now, the secondary ones, I think, have merit, but I wonder
whether or not they would be best suited.... We've just established
the subcommittee under routine motions. Obviously, we have work
to do right now on the BRM for the next couple of sessions in
preparation for the ministers conference in November. I wonder
whether or not that can be best established in the subcommittee, so
that we can work collaboratively to set an agenda.

I think Mr. Perron raised some good measures, but perhaps they
can be tabled for now, and we can deal with those in subcommittee
and come back with more.... I don't have it in front of me either;
that's part of the challenge.

The Chair: Only one motion has been moved. The other ones
right now have been read. I think we could deal with this one right
now. I think it would be appropriate if we get that out of the way,
and then we could move on to other business. Are we good on that?
[Translation]

Mr. Perron, do you have anything else to add?
Mr. Yves Perron: Yes, Mr. Chair, I would like a clarification.

You say we have one motion. We are actually voting to resume
the supply management study. Is that right?

● (1600)

The Chair: Yes, that is right.

[English]

We shall vote on that motion.

Monsieur Perron, can you read your motion again for the group?

[Translation]

Mr. Yves Perron: Yes, of course, and perhaps I can read it slow‐
er. So I move the following:

That, pursuant to Standing Order 108(2), the Committee undertake a study on
the business risk management programs; that the evidence and documentation
the Committee received for the study during the 1st Session of the 43rd Parlia‐
ment be considered by the Committee during the current session; and that it fi‐
nalize the nearly completed report.

[English]

The Chair: You've all heard the motion. Are we ready for the
vote?

(Motion agreed to)

The Chair: Thank you, Monsieur Perron.

Now we can move on to other business.

Kody, do you have anything else to add on to your intervention?

Mr. Kody Blois: Mr. Chair, I would suggest that we've now set
the course, thanks to Mr. Perron and his motion, and that BRM is
going to be our focus for the next couple of weeks in terms of get‐
ting that report ready.

This committee has a great history of working together, all mem‐
bers on here. Of course, Ms. Rood is now the shadow critic, and I
believe whoever would be on our side and you, Mr. Chair, along
with Mr. Perron and Mr. MacGregor.... I think we should leave that
work to them to decide if we can come to some type of agreement
and then basically move forward on any additional work from
there.

I would recommend that we've done our part here. We should fo‐
cus on working with the clerk on what our schedule could look like
in terms of the drafting of where we left off. I think that the addi‐
tional motions that Mr. Perron has put out have merit. I'd like to see
them in more detail. This is the hard part of meeting virtually; it's
difficult.

I like that he mentioned the environment. There were some ele‐
ments in the Speech from the Throne that members might want to
do, but I think it's best to deal with that in the subcommittee where
it's a little bit tidier and easier to exchange ideas and information.

Mr. Tim Louis (Kitchener—Conestoga, Lib.): Just on a point
of technical clarity, Mr. Steinley had raised his hand on camera and
did not get recognized. When we want to speak, would you suggest
we use the participants menu—the raised hand or the lowered
hand—or would you like us to raise our hands?

I just want to make sure Mr. Steinley gets in there.



6 AGRI-01 October 8, 2020

The Chair: The only time I ask for a raised hand is when we
vote. That's how I recognize everyone in favour or not. If you want
to get into the speaking order, use the “raise hand” function, if you
can.

Mr. Tim Louis: Perfect. Thank you.
The Chair: Thank you.

Monsieur Lehoux.
[Translation]

Mr. Richard Lehoux: I will yield to Mr. Steinley for the time
being and wait for my turn, because I believe he raised his hand be‐
fore I did.

The Chair: All right. Thank you, Mr. Lehoux.
[English]

Mr. Steinley, you have your hand raised. Go ahead.
Mr. Warren Steinley: It's along the same line of thinking that

Mr. Blois had. Should we bring forward motions that we want to
study now or send those to the subcommittee so that the members
have them before we start this meeting? I am a new member. I
know that we have been talking about the BRM programs from the
last committee that was sitting before COVID-19, and we do have
some motions we'd like to bring forward.

Would everyone like them ahead of time, or should we put some
on the record now so that we know what direction we'd like to go
in, moving forward?

The Chair: It's up to the committee. As Mr. Blois said, we can
all submit the motions and then take them to the subcommittee,
where we can look at each of them and then prioritize the ones we
want to move forward with. That's one way of doing it. We can also
deal with them right now, if that's what the committee wants. It's up
to the committee.
[Translation]

You have the floor, Mr. Perron.
● (1605)

Mr. Yves Perron: Of course, I would not object to us meeting as
a subcommittee to improve a proposal, especially one that deals
with the environment and support for farm workers. I believe that
each of the political parties, in its own way, has its own particular
concerns in this regard. It might be a good idea, but I would like us
to hold on to it until we implement it.

On the other hand, with regard to the motion on the supply-man‐
aged industries and companies that have not yet received any com‐
pensation, a decision was already made in the last Parliament. You
may tell me that it fell through, but we have just decided that we
are going to continue with the business risk management program.
So it would make sense to undertake the study that we were going
to undertake two days after prorogation and that was already set up.
I am asking my colleagues how they feel about this. We could vote
on it and agree to meet as a subcommittee to properly develop the
environmental proposal. I feel that is a good idea.

The Chair: Mr. Perron, so you are suggesting that we complete
our study, because we have already voted to continue work that we
had already begun, but if I understand correctly, you also want to

put forward a motion that we continue the study that we were sup‐
posed to do on supply management.

Did I understand what you said correctly?

Mr. Yves Perron: Yes. I am well aware that my motion on sup‐
port for agriculture, environmental protection and an analysis of the
real effects is completely new and that this is our first meeting
where, as an exception, we are allowed to introduce motions with‐
out 48 hours' notice. I am well aware that this merits some discus‐
sion, and I am happy to agree. Compromise is my middle name, as
you know.

With respect to the study on supply management and the produc‐
ers who have received no compensation, we were supposed to start
it on August 21 or August 22, if memory serves. I feel that we
could do what we intended to do before prorogation, because we
had approved it.

I move that, if my colleagues agree.

The Chair: Thank you.

Mr. Lehoux, you raised your hand?

Mr. Richard Lehoux: I had raised my hand because I wanted a
clarification. We agreed to start again with the study on risk man‐
agement programs. We had already filed a preliminary report.

My question was more related to the clerk's question about when
we can ultimately proceed. I know there was a meeting, but you can
understand, with the election in Saskatchewan, things have changed
a little. However, we should not unduly delay tabling our final re‐
port for too long.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Lehoux.

Mr. Drouin, you have the floor.

Mr. Francis Drouin: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

We all agree on the urgency of setting up risk management pro‐
grams and we want to give you the mandate, Mr. Chair, to table the
report in the House as soon as possible.

If the committee agrees, I suggest that we begin the study as
soon as possible. As soon as the report is completed, we should
schedule a subcommittee meeting. I know that Mr. Steinley had
some studies to suggest. Mr. Perron has mentioned another one. So
I think we could all talk about it in subcommittee. My suggestion
does not mean that I do not respect all the members here, but when
there are seven cooks in the kitchen, things move slowly. So I feel
that this should be sent to subcommittee. Then we would inform the
committee that we have agreed on the agenda for the next few
months.

For the time being, the risk management programs study is most
pressing. Let us take the report back to the House. Then, as soon as
that is done, the subcommittee can meet and discuss what is going
to happen over the next few months.

That is what I suggest, otherwise we will be running around in
circles forever.
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● (1610)

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Drouin.
[English]

Just to clarify, the subcommittee can meet while we're doing the
BRM. We could have a separate meeting of the subcommittee to try
to look at future business. That can happen at the same time. We
don't have to wait until the end of that.

Mr. Steinley.
Mr. Warren Steinley: Yes, thank you very much. That was the

clarification I was looking for.

I agree with Mr. Drouin. I think that we should move forward
with the BRM and get that done as soon as possible, and then I'll be
putting my motion forward to my representative on the subcommit‐
tee—or else we can go around in a circle.

I think we can move forward in that direction.
Mr. Kody Blois: I'll echo what's already been said by Mr.

Drouin and Mr. Steinley. I think that's the best approach. We've had
a productive start and good agreement on this committee. I go back
to the history of our working collaboratively to get results for the
people we represent in this committee. I think it's best that we leave
the motion that was put out, along with the other motions that
might be coming, for the subcommittee. We have established BRM.

Mr. Perron mentioned supply management. We never agreed to
do a study, and I just want to clarify that for the record. I think he
was mentioning an emergency meeting that was suggested to be
called. I think there's no problem discussing that. Our priority right
now has to be BRM. I have the most supply-managed farms east of
Montreal, and I'm happy to have a discussion on that in the months
ahead because I think it's an important topic, but let's leave that for
the subcommittee. Let's focus on BRM, and then move on.
[Translation]

The Chair: Is your hand up, Mr. Lehoux?
Mr. Richard Lehoux: Yes, I would like a clarification.

I agree with the previous speakers, because I also have a motion
to put forward. I will send it to the committee for consideration.

The Chair: Thank you.

Mr. Perron, you have the floor.
Mr. Yves Perron: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

This is the last time I am going to say this.

I feel we could even vote on it. I understand my friend Mr. Blois;
they may not have voted in favour of the motion, but it was the
committee's decision. It was an emergency motion signed by four
members of the committee, by our friends in the Conservative Par‐
ty, to clarify the situation, and that has not changed at all.

I do not want to interfere with the risk management report. This
did not interfere with it in August; it should not interfere with it
now, and it will not slow anything down either. I believe we can
pick up what the committee intended to do and was doing in the
first session. Then, for anything new, I agree with everyone; let us
meet in subcommittee. We have nothing new here, it is simply a

matter of looking at those supply management sectors that have yet
to receive any compensation.

At the very least, I suggest that we vote on it.

[English]

The Chair: To also clarify, Mr. Perron, with regard to the emer‐
gency meeting we were supposed to have, we hadn't voted on any‐
thing yet. We were going to meet to decide if that was something
we were going to support. We can still do that at this time, but just
to clarify, there was no motion voted on because we never had that
meeting.

Mr. Epp, go ahead.

Mr. Dave Epp (Chatham-Kent—Leamington, CPC): Let me
say first of all, I'm looking forward to working with everyone
around—I was going to say “the table”, but I guess this isn't the ta‐
ble; it's more of a Hollywood Squares.

As far as a BRM motion, I am most looking forward to getting
up to speed. I'm sure the clerk will make available the draft motion
to us. I haven't had the opportunity...or perhaps it's online; I haven't
found it.

I'm looking forward to getting up to speed and to working with
all. Thanks.

The Chair: Mr. Epp, welcome to our committee.

Monsieur Drouin.

[Translation]

Mr. Francis Drouin: Mr. Perron, I understand the purpose of
this motion, but I will not support it out of respect for my col‐
leagues who also have motions to put forward. We must take into
account everything we have to consider over the next few months.
We have agreed on risk management. The subcommittee can con‐
sider your motion if you choose to bring it forward. However, if
you want us to put your motion to a vote now, I will not be able to
support it. I want to hear from my colleagues first, and the best way
to do that is to go through the subcommittee.

● (1615)

[English]

The Chair: There are no hands raised, so I believe at this time
we have a sort of consensus that we get the subcommittee to work.
We can certainly call a meeting to that effect.

If everybody is okay with that, I suggest that everyone who has
motions forward them, so we can have them all ready to debate at
the subcommittee level and then recommend to the main commit‐
tee.



8 AGRI-01 October 8, 2020

Before we move on, we could perhaps ask our analyst to tell us
where we're at with the report and how soon we will be ready to
review it. I believe it is version one that we are at.

Mr. Corentin Bialais (Committee Researcher): Right before
the prorogation, we sent the first draft of the report. We could send
it back to you so everyone will have this version. We will be ready
to work on it after that.

The Chair: Okay. Thank you very much.

For the ones who were not on the committee—I guess you can
send it across the board to everyone—at the next meeting, we will
look at version one.

Again, we'll make sure we get that report completed. At my dis‐
cretion, I guess we can call a subcommittee meeting whenever it's
convenient. We'll do a Zoom meeting. I assume it will probably be
next week.

How soon do you want it? Will we try to get one next week? I
know it's an off week.

The Clerk: Mr. Chair, I'm terribly sorry to interrupt. The meet‐
ings are available based on the scheduling agreed to by the whips. I
believe next week is very full with a lot of other committee meet‐
ings. They are only allowed so many meetings per slot. I think that
meetings are called, at least at the start, based on the agreement by
the whips.

The Chair: Okay. We can certainly contact our whips to get into
that scheduling, and at the first available time, we can have a sub‐
committee meeting. We don't know when our next committee meet‐
ing will be, so that will be announced and it will be sent to every‐
one.

Monsieur Perron.
[Translation]

Mr. Yves Perron: How will upcoming meetings work: will they
be virtual, in person or hybrid?
[English]

The Clerk: Do you want me to take that, sir?
The Chair: Go ahead, Madame Belmore.
The Clerk: As per the order that was adopted in the House, the

future committee meetings will be hybrid meetings. It will be your
discretion as to whether you wish to appear in person in Ottawa in
the committee room or whether you wish to appear virtually.

The Chair: Again, to the clerk's notice, all meetings will be
based on the whips' various parties agreeing when our time will be.
We don't really control that. However, as soon as they give us a
time frame, we'll certainly have the meeting and proceed.

I don't know if there is any other order of business that you want
to discuss at this time.

Go ahead, Monsieur Drouin.
Mr. Francis Drouin: I just wanted to welcome Dave Epp, who's

wearing a different hat now. He was with the Canada Foodgrains
Bank. I look forward to working with him.

I don't know Mr. Steinley personally, but I look forward to work‐
ing with him as well.

I just wanted to give them a shout-out and a welcome.
Mr. Kody Blois: I'll second that, Mr. Chair.
The Chair: Thank you very much.

I'm certainly happy to have you and your experience in the grain
industry, which is part of our discussion for sure.

Thank you, again, Mr. Epp and Mr. Steinley.

[Translation]

Mr. Perron, you have the floor.
Mr. Yves Perron: We got off to a great start, but I wanted to

congratulate you on your re-election as chair.

Ms. Rood, congratulations on being elected vice-chair.

I am happy to see everyone back, and I welcome all new com‐
mittee members. We will get to know each other better.

● (1620)

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Perron.

[English]

Everyone, we'll see you next time. You will be notified.

Again, work on your motions.

I'm sorry, I missed Ms. Rood.

Go ahead, Ms. Rood.
Ms. Lianne Rood: I just want to echo those comments.

It's great to see everybody back again. I'm really looking forward
to working with all of you to do the great work that we've been able
to do before. I hope we can continue to do that with our new mem‐
bers as well.

I'm glad to see you all back.
The Chair: Thank you everyone.

Have a good Thanksgiving weekend.

The meeting is adjourned.
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